User Manual – Medical Product/Medical Software - AOS Visual Acuity Advanced Ophthalmic Systems Ltd (AOS)

# $\Lambda OS$

#### Important

No part of this manual or software may be reproduced in any form or by any means, including, without limitation, electronic or mechanical, such as photocopying or recording, or by any information storage and retrieval systems, without the express written consent of AOS Ltd. Specifications are subject to change without notice.

AOS, AOS Anterior, AOS3, AOS VA and AOS Posterior are registered trademarks or trademarks of AOS Ltd in the UK or other countries. All other names and trademarks referenced herein are trademarks of AOS or their respective owners. Designations used by third-party manufacturers and sellers to distinguish their products may be claimed as trademarks by those third parties.

This user guide is subject to periodic review, update, and revision. Customers are cautioned to verify that the user guide's information applies to the software version in use.

This medical product performs as described in this manual.

The user of this medical product shall have the sole responsibility for any problem that results from improper use or alteration by anyone other than AOS.

The safety, reliability, and performance of this medical product can only be assured under the following conditions:

• The medical product has been used according to the accompanying operating instructions in this user guide.

Copyright © 2023 AOS Ltd. All rights reserved. Advanced Ophthalmic Systems Ltd, The Old Rectory, Church Street, Weybridge, Surrey KT13 8DE, UK.

## Contents

1	Introduction
1.1	About this guide4
1.2	System Requirements
2	Initiating a visual acuity exam
2.1	Opening the VA system from AOS5
2.2	Initial ECP setup
2.3	Sending the patient invitation
2.4	Patient setup
3	Pre-assessment setup
3.1	Patient identification10
3.2	Screen calibration (recommended)
3.3	Screen calibration (alternative)
3.4 2.5	Patient distance automatic calibration (recommended)
3.5	Patient distance manual calibration (alternative)14
4	Performing a visual acuity exam15
4.1	Assessment settings (scoring / letters / crowding box)15
4.2	Selecting a vision measurement
4.3	Completing a vision measurement
4.4	Saving results
5	Checking exam settings and recalibration 22
5.1	Changing settings during an assessment
5.2	Recalibrating the system during an exam (screen size / distance)
6	Ending a visual acuity exam
6.1	Options to repeat assessments23
6.2	Ending the call with the patient
6.3	Returning to AOS23
7	Viewing results
7.1	View results in AOS
7.2	Creating a report of the results25
8	The patient journey 27
9	Getting help and support
9.1	The AOS website
9.2	Requesting product support29
9.3	Finding support documentation online for other AOS products
9.4	Update notifications

10	FAQ's	
10.1	How does patient distance tracking work (automatic)	29
10.2	2 Tips to get best results whilst using the automatic distance tracking	
10.3	3 When to re-check distance tracking?	
10.4	How do I end a call mid-exam?	
10.5	What happens if the patient ends the call?	
10.6	What happens if the patient doesn't receive the email invitation?	
10.7	Printing the user result files	
10.8	I can't open my results file	
10.9	9 Software update notifications	31
11	Contact AOS	31

## 1 Introduction

# 1.1 About this guide

This document describes how to use the AOS VA software package for vision measurement.

Using a combination of semi-automated test algorithms and automated scoring, the visual acuity (VA) system measures and calculates precise and reliable visual acuity test scores. The eye care provider (ECP) and patient are connected through the video call feature for the entirety of the vision assessments. The patient journey is driven by the ECP, meaning the patient is not required to control their screen aside from the initial setup stage.

The size of letters presented on the patient monitor are dependent upon screen resolution, calibration and test distance. The device must therefore be correctly calibrated and testing distance employed. The patient monitor should (whenever possible) run in full screen mode. The system uses the information gathered during calibration to display the correct letter size for the vision test.

# 1.2 System Requirements

The specification below represents the minimum requirements for AOS VA software. AOS VA is a web application and can be run via online browsers.

Supported Browser	Chrome, Firefox, Safari, Opera
Supported Devices for ECP	<ul> <li>Laptop, computer, tablet used in landscape mode</li> <li>Under 5 years old</li> <li>With microphone and speakers (or alternatives)</li> <li>Webcam</li> <li>Minimum screen resolution 1024x720px</li> <li>Latest Browser (Chrome, Firefox, Opera, Safari)</li> <li>Any operating system (Windows / MacOS / Linux)</li> <li>Internet (or WiFi) connection that can support a video call</li> </ul>
Supported devices for patients	<ul> <li>Laptop only (NOT desktop or tablet)</li> <li>Under 5 years old</li> <li>Embedded microphone and speakers</li> <li>Embedded webcam (minimum HD format – 720p)</li> <li>Screen size from 11" to 17.3" (laptop screen only no external screen)</li> <li>Screen resolution of 1920x1080px (Full HD) or more (Quad HD, 4K Ultra HD)</li> <li>Screen with a 120ppi or more</li> <li>Latest Browser (Chrome, Firefox, Opera, Safari)</li> <li>Any operating system (Windows / MacOS / Linux)</li> <li>Internet (or WiFi) connection that can support a video call</li> </ul>

#### 2 Initiating a visual acuity exam

To start a VA session the ECP must access the system via their aos-hub.com account. In this stage the ECP and patient are not yet connected via the video call. The ECP must set up the call and invite the patient, then the patient goes through a setup process before the video call connects.

I vostevit vitevitevitevitevitevitevitevitevitevite																				
Image: Note of the systems       Select Patient       About       Help       Admin       Log Out         Datient Record       Edit Profile         Patient ID       0446-659976-1204       Edit Profile         Title       Mr       Address line 1         First Name       Domenico       Address line 2         Surrame       Dolce       Town / City         Date of Birth       0+0-21965       County         Gender       Male       Postcode / Zip         NKS ID       Phone Number         MRN       Email         Add / View Images       Questionnaire       Video Call       Request Patient Image       Visual Acuity Exam	•••		O AOS Dev2																	
Patient ID       0446-659976-1204       Edit Profile         Title       Mr       Address line 1         First Name       Domenico       Address line 2         Surname       Dolce       Town / City         Date of Birth       0+02-1965       County         Gender       Male       Postcode / Zip         NHS ID       Phone Number         MRN       Email	$\leftarrow \rightarrow$	С		08	<b>≂≏</b> htt	ps://aosde	/2.reassure	clinical.	co.uk/externa	al/realiser.a	spx?i=7881a	aec6-503f-4	7ef-8e1a-d16	69814e3e1	7 🏠		◙	* (	<b>3</b>   }	
Patient iD       0446-659976-1204         Title       Mr       Address line 1         First Name       Domenico       Address line 2         Surname       Doice       Town / City         Date of Birth       01-02-1965       County         Gender       Male       Postcode / Zip         NHS ID       Phone Number         MRN       Email         Add / View Images       Questionnaire       Video Call       Request Patient Image       Visual Acuity Exam			<			S	ADVANCED OPHTHALM SYSTEMS	D 4IC		Selec	: Patient		About	Help	Admin	Log Out				
Title       Mr       Address line 1         First Name       Domenico       Address line 2         Surname       Dolce       Town / City         Date of Birth       0+02-1965       County         Gender       Male       Postcode / Zip         NHS ID       Phone Number       Email         Add / View Images       Questionnaire       Video Call       Request Patient Image       Visual Aculty Exam         Examination History       View Exam Exam Date       Clinician       Treatments       Comments				Pation	+ ID	0///6-65	0076-120/1		Pat	tient	Record	d			Ec	it Profile				
First Name       Domenico       Address line 2         Surname       Dolce       Town / City         Date of Birth       01-02-1965       County         Gender       Male       Postcode / Zip         NHS ID       Phone Number         MRN       Email         Add / View Images       Questionnaire       Video Call       Request Patient Image       Visual Aculty Exam         Examination History       View Exam Date       Clinician       Treatments       Comments							5570-1204				Add	tress line 1								
Surrame     Dolce     Town / City       Date of Birth     01-02-1965     County       Gender     Male     Postcode / Zip       NHS ID     Phone Number       MRN     Email         Add / View Images     Questionnaire     Video Call     Request Patient Image     Visual Aculty Exam							co													
Date of Birth     01-02-1965     County       Gender     Male     Postcode / Zlp       NHS ID     Phone Number       MRN     Email         Add / View Images     Questionnaire     Video Call     Request Patient Image     Visual Acuity Exam       Examination History     View Exam     Clinician     Treatment     Comments																				
NHS ID     Phone Number       MRN     Email       Add / View Images     Questionnaire     Video Call     Request Patient Image     Visual Acuity Exam       Examination History     View Exam     Exam Date     Clinician     Treatment     Comments				Date of B	irth	01-02-19	65													
MRN     Email       Add / View Images     Questionnaire     Video Call     Request Patient Image     Visual Acuity Exam       Examination History     View Exam     Exam Date     Clinician     Treatment     Comments				Gen	der	Male					Post	tcode / Zip								
Add / View Images     Questionnaire     Video Call     Request Patient Image     Visual Acuity Exam       Examination History     View Exam     Exam Date     Clinician     Treatment     Comments				NHS	S ID						Phone	e Number								
Examination History View Exam Exam Date Clinician Treatment Comments				м	IRN							Email								
History View Exam Exam Date Clinician Treatment Comments					A	dd / View	Images	Que	stionnaire	Vid	eo Call	Reques	st Patient II	mage	Visual Ac	uity Exam				
				Examinat Hist	ion ory	View Ex	am Exan	n Date	Clinician		Treat	itment		Comme	ents					
						No record	s to display													

## 2.1 Opening the VA system from AOS3

- Log in to the AOS3
- Select the patient
- On the patient summary page, select the 'Visual Acuity Exam' button
- This opens the VA exam in a new browser window.

## 2.2 Initial ECP setup

•••	AOS Dev2			Start - AOS Vi			+											
	С	080	🗅 https:	//dev-va.netlify	.app/c/start	?token=a	f898efe-13d	7-466d-	9957-18d1e	3c0124e			ជ		⊵		<b>K</b>	
	AOS	VA	Allow de microph	v-va.netlify.ap one?	o to use you	r camera	and							EXIT	×	배		
				Time HD Camer														
	Patient info	Dista		Book Pro Micror ember this decis							Sto	irt new t	test					
	Mr Domenico	Dolce				Block	Allow					Please		your video	8 aud	io in		
	56 years old   DC	)B: 1 Februar	ry 1965									the set	tings pan	el				
													CON	FIGURE				
													CO	NTINUE				

If this is the first time using the system on your device then you must first allow the software access your device's camera and microphone.

## CONFIDENTIAL

Page 6 / 31



The ECP should then select the 'Configure' button and follow these steps:

- Select the measurement units (LOGMAR or ETDRS)
- Select the Snellen equivalent (UK, US, EU)
- Check the audio and video is working on your device
- Once you are happy with these settings click anywhere outside of the configure box to continue

#### 2.3 Sending the patient invitation



The next stage is to send the patient an invitation to the VA exam. The patient's email address and mobile number should be automatically populated in the relevant fields, this information is pulled over from the AOS patient page. If you are aware that a different email and/or mobile number needs to be used, these can be changed before sending the patient invitation. Once the email address and mobile number have been checked, select 'Send invitation'.

Note: The email address field is compulsory and must be correct as it sends the patient invitation. The mobile number field is optional but can be used to send an SMS reminder to the patient to check their emails (for the invitation).

At this stage, the ECP must wait for the patient to accept the invitation and follow the setup steps, after that they will be connected to the patient. This patient set up stage could take up to 5 minutes.

#### 2.4 Patient setup

When the patient accepts the invitation and uses the PIN provided to enter the call, they must then go through a series of setup pages before they will be connected to the ECP. Read section 8 to understand the patient journey. The setup process involves:

- Turning up screen brightness
- Turning up device volume

- Making the browser window full screen
- Checking audio and video work on the device
- Checking their room setup ensure the patient is in a bright room, with 3m/10ft space behind them

C C	O AOS Dev2		Start - AOS Visual Acuity												
Patient info Distance   Mr Domenico Dolce   56 years old I DOB: 1 February 1965     Station ewites     1   Audio-video settings confirmed   EDT   2   Logged in   3   Invitation sent   4   Patient Ready and waiting   CONNECT TO PATIENT   Session details   Link: https://dev-vanetify.app/p/0d758/b6   Pir: 1288	C	🔿 🗛 🞫 🗅 h	tps://dev-va.netlify.app/c/s	/start?toke	en=af898ef	fe-13d7-466	d-9957-18d1	e3c0124e		☆		${igsidential}$	* (	<b>)</b>   )	
Product wind       Distance       Name         Mr Domenico Dolce       2       Logged in       2         56 years old   DOB: 1 February 1985       3       Invitation sent       3         4       Patient Ready and waiting       CONNECT TO PATIENT       CONNECT TO PATIENT         Session details       Inix: https://dev-vanetiify.app/p/0d758/b6       Inix: https://dev-vanetiify.app/p/0d758/b6	NOS	VA					CALL TIME	= 00 : 00 : 00		(l)	EXIT	×	削		
Mr Domenico Dolce   56 years old I DOB: 1 February 1865     2   Logged in   3   Invitation sent   4   Patient Ready and waiting   CONNECT TO PATIENT     Session details   Link: https://dev-vanetify.app/p/0d758/b6   Pin: 1288	Patient info	Distance	Near					s	Start new	test					
56 years old I DOB: 1 February 1965 2 Logged In 3 Invitation sent 4 Potient Ready and waiting CONNECT TO PATIENT Session details Ink https://dev-vanetify.app/p/0d7581b6 Pin: 1288	Mr. Domonico	Dalca							1 Audio-	video sett	ings confirm	ned	EDIT		
4 Patient Ready and waiting CONNECT TO PATIENT Session details Link: https://dev-vanetiify.app/p/0d758/b6 Pin: 1288									2 Logge	d in			0		
CONNECT TO PATIENT Session details Link: https://dev-va.netiify.app/p/0d7581b6 Pin: 1288									3 Invitat	ion sent			0		
Session details Link: https://dev-va.netlify.app/p/0d758/b6 Pin: 1288									4 Patien	t Ready a	nd waiting				
Link: https://dev-va.netlify.app/p/0d758/b6 Pin: 1288										CONNEC	T TO PATIEN	IT			
Pin: 1288									Session	details			Ō		
Cancel patient session										s://dev-va	.netlify.app/p	o/0d758	31b6		
										Cancel po	atient sessio	on			

When the patient has followed these steps the 'Connect to patient' button will become active for the ECP. Select this to start the video call.

#### 3 Pre-assessment setup

Note: at this stage it is important that the patient has completed the setup steps listed above and that they are ready to start the assessment. It is advised that you confirm the above with the patient before continuing.

Before a vision measurement can be carried out the patient must go through a series of calibration steps to ensure their device is correctly calibrated with the system. From this point forward, the ECP will drive the patient journey.

# 3.1 Patient identification

• • • • AOS Dev2 × Value Identify patient - AOS				
← → C O A == D https://dev-va.netlify.ap		☆	♥  €	
AOS VA	CALL TIME - 00:00:0	∞° <b>□</b> 0 (₽)	EXIT X 📰	
Α	Patient identification Please identify the patient. You can ask the following que 1 What is your full name?	stions if required. Mr Domenico Dolce		
RIGHT LEFT	2 What is your date of birth?	1 February 1965		
Mr Domenico Doice	3 What is your address?			
	END SESSION	F	PATIENT IDENTIFIED	

At this stage, the ECP can follow the clinic's usual protocol for verifying the patient's identification. Select the 'Patient confirmed' button to continue with the exam.

3.2 Screen calibration (recommended)

	al Acuity × +	
← → C O A ≅ C https://dev-va.netlify.a	pp/c/assessment/calibrate/pixel-size-cc	☆ ♡ 👱 🗷 🕼 ≡
AOS VA	CALL TIME - 00 : 01 : 01	🗞 exit 🗙 🚔
O R	Screen calibration   Credit card The patient needs to match the graphic on their screen to the size of a t	bank card using the slider.
RIGHT LEFT Mr Domenico Doice	Patient has matched the cardi	<b>~</b>
Patient distance N/A		
	NO CARD AVAILABLE	NEXT
	Patient info Distance Near	
	Mr Domenico Dolce 56 years old   DOB: 1 February 1965	

Screen calibration allows the system to calculate the patient's screen in order to show the correct letter/word sizing. Here, the ECP should guide the patient to follow the on-screen instructions on the patient's screen. The patient should follow these steps:

- Find a bank card (this is outlined in the invitation email)
- Align the bank card with the graphic on the screen
- Move the slider on the right to expand/shrink the card outline on the screen until it matches the patient's bank card
- When the graphic is the same size, the patient selects 'Card matched'

On the ECP screen when the patient matches the card, the 'Next' button will become active. Select this to continue to the next stage.

Note: Once this stage is complete, skip to section 3.4 to continue, if a patient does not have a bank card present, select the 'No card available' button to measure the screen manually.

#### 3.3 Screen calibration (alternative)

AOS Dev2 X Calibrate - AOS Visu	al Acuity × +			
$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\bigcirc$ $\bigcirc$ $\bigcirc$ $\bigcirc$ $\bullet$ $\bullet$ https://dev-va.netlify.a	pp/c/assessment/calibrate/pixel-size-h	☆	⊠ ⊻	<b>%</b>  þ ≡
AOS VA	CALL TIME - 00 : 01 : 08 <sup>©</sup>	&	EXIT X 醚	
Reserve       LEFT         Mr Domenico Dolce       N/A         Patient distance       N/A	Screen calibration   Measuring         1       Inform the patient they will need either a tape measure or ruler         2       The patient must measure the H on their screen in mm.         3       input the height of the letter H         mm       mm         CARD AVAILABLE         Patient info       Distance         Mr Domenico Dolce         56 years old   DOB: 1 February 1965		NEXT	

To measure the screen manually, the patient will need a measuring device with mm measurements (e.g. ruler). Instruct the patient to measure the height of the letter H on their screen, write down this value in the field available on the ECP screen. Select next to continue to the next stage.

#### 3.4 Patient distance automatic calibration (recommended)

AOS Dev2 X Calibrate - AOS Visu	ual Acuity × +	
$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C O A $\equiv$ https://dev-va.netlify.a	app/c/assessment/calibrate 🔂 🗵 😢 🖡	
AOS VA	CALL TIME - 00 : 02 : 32 ° 🕅 K EXIT × ₹	
RENT LEFT Ar Domenico Dolce Potient distance N/A	Detence collibration I Patient distance auto tracking         1       Image: Detent distance auto tracking         Distance more in feet/incline       Detent signed         13       Image: Detent signed         13       Image: Detent signed         13       Image: Detent signed         13       Image: Detent signed         14       Image: Detent signed         15       Image: Detent signed         16       Image: Detent signed         17       Image: Detent signed         16       Image: Detent signed         17       Image: Detent signed	

This stage allows the system to calibrate the distance tracker.

- Enter the patient's height in the fields provided
- Select the patient's gender
- Guide the patient through the instructions provided on their screen so the patient is in the following position
  - Facing the device with a straight back so their face is fully visible in the camera preview
  - Arms and hands straight out in front of them with their fingertips touching the front of their screen
- When the patient is in position, select the 'Lock tracking' button
- The ECP can now view the patient distance under the video preview (at this stage it will be in red)
- Once the patient distance is tracking, select the 'Next' button to continue.

Note: The auto tracking works best when the patient is in optimal lighting conditions with reduced glare on the screen. If the auto tracking does not connect (e.g. the patient distance remains as N/A and the 'Next' button is inactive), the ECP may need to unlock and re-lock tracking with the patient in position. If the issue persists, manual calibration will need to be used.

## **3.5** Patient distance manual calibration (alternative)

Manual calibration can be used in place of the auto distance tracking.

- Select 'Skip auto tracking'
- Guide the patient to the correct position prior to the start of each test
- The patient will need a tape measure (or equivalent) to measure out 3m (for distance vision) or 40cm (for near vision) from the device.
- Once measured out, they should put an object at that distance so they can remain in the spot for the entire measurement.

#### 4 Performing a visual acuity exam

Once the calibration stages are complete, the patient is ready to start visual acuity measurements. The system tests distance vision first, followed by near vision. When 'Finish and Save' is selected, this will end each vision assessment and move to the next part. Within each assessment the ECP can determine which order they conduct the laterality and correction.

The default measurement output can be selected to be logMAR or number of ETDRS letters and either UK Snellen, US Snellen or Decimal Snellen. The default letter set can also be set from Sloan and Landolt-C, and crowding bars can be switched on or off.

Each measurement follows the same sequence: range finding followed by thresholding. Range finding presents in descending or ascending 2 logMAR line steps a single crowded letter or picture starting at logMAR .60 or 6/24 (20/80 in the US) size. Thresholding then follows where sequential rows of crowded letters are presented starting with a size 2 logMAR lines larger than the last incorrect range finding result. Each letter is scored and the test continues until the pass fail criteria have been satisfied.

Optr	ttings for Distance otype Sloan Letter mination criteria	CALL TIME - 00 : 04	슈 : 42 ° 전		
Optr	Sloan Letter	▼			
	out of 5		Crowding box YES	LINE BY LINE	
Mr Domenico Doice Dis	stance - Ready to start				
inst who rem if th	truct the patient to back away een the distance box on the lef nain at that position for the en ne patient moves once the me ase select stop measurement END RECALIBRATE	t signals the patient tire distance measur easurement has star and then check dist	is at the correct distance (3r rement. rted, the distance tracking m	n). The patient will	
	Domenico Dolce	Near			

# 4.1 Assessment settings (scoring / letters / crowding box)

# CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

Prior to each vision assessment, the ECP will choose the following settings:

- Optotype: Sloan letter, Landolt-C
- Scoring by: Single, line
- Termination criteria: 1,2,3,4,5 out of 5
- Crowding box: yes, no

Then select 'Start' to move to the next stage.

Note: If during a measurement, the ECP tries to change any of these settings, that measurement will be abandoned and the results will not be saved.

#### 4.2 Selecting a vision measurement

•••	O AOS Dev2		Measure - AOS V	Visual Acuity $ imes$ +							
$\leftarrow \   \rightarrow$	с 	○吕⋴□	https://dev-va.netli	fy.app/c/assessment/distar			<u>ح</u> ر		⊘ ₹	ß	
			٨	Distance vision	Sloa	n Letter   3/5	Scoring: Single iter	m   Crowding	box: On	EDIT	
	RIGHT	8	LEFT	Laterality RIGHT	BINOCULAR	LEFT	None	•	START		
		r Domenico Dolc		Notes Record any addit	ional notes here						
	Patient distance		3.13 meters 🥑								
	Check patient dis	stance?	~							li.	
				END WITHOUT	SAVING						
				Patient info	Distance Near						
				Mr Domenico Do 56 years old   DOB: 1							

Select the laterality and correction and then select 'Start' to begin the measurement.

At this stage, ensure that the settings you have chosen are correct and ensure the patient is at the correct distance for the assessment:

- Distance vision: 3m/10ft
- Near vision: 40cm/16inch

Note: this stage applies to both distance and near vision assessments.

## CONFIDENTIAL

Page 16 / 31

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

#### 4.3 Completing a vision measurement

Each measurement follows the same sequence: range finding followed by thresholding. A correct response is recorded by selecting the 'tick' icon. An incorrect response is recorded by selecting the 'cross' icon. The following should be noted whilst scoring a measurement:

- During range finding, the next letter/word will show as soon as the previous is marked as correct or incorrect
- During thresholding, the letters/words are marked as correct or incorrect and then the 'Next' button must be selected to move on
- The 'Mark remaining results' button will record any unmarked letter/word as correct or incorrect
- Results can be overridden before the 'Next' button is selected
- The ECP can highlight (underline) a specific letter/word for the patient by clicking on it

The images below display various stages of the vision measurement.

	Visual Acuity × +	
← → C O A == B https://dev-	ify.app/c/assessment/distance/right/none 🟠 😇 👱 🔇 🕪	
	Distance vision Sloan Letter   3/5   Scoring: Single item   Crowding box: On   EDIT	
X	LogMAR         UK - 6m         Measurement         REFRESH           0.60         6/23.9         Right I None         REFRESH	
RIGHT Mr Domenico Dolce		
Patient distance 3.13 meter		
	×	
	STOP MEASUREMENT	
	Patient info Distance Near	

Distance vision, range finding

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 17 / 31

8	Distance vision Sloan Letter   3/5   Scoring: Single Item   Crowding box: On   EDIT	
8	LogMAR UK - 6m Measurement REFRESH -0.20 6/3.8 Right   None	
Reduit LEFT Mr Domenico Doice Patient distance 3.13 meters @	ZCORK	
	X     X     X     X       Highlight a letter/symbol by selecting it     Mark remaining results:     ✓     X	
	STOP MEASUREMENT NEXT	

Distance vision, thresholding, with crowding box

●●●	X Measure - AOS Visi	aal Acuity × + app(c/assessment/distance/left/none ☆ ♡ ± 3   1 =
	8	Distance vision Sloan Letter   3/5   Scoring: Single item   Crowding box On   EDIT
2		LogMAR UK - 6m Meosurement REFRESH 0.00 6/6 Left   None
RIGHT Mr Domenico		RSDNC
Patient distance	3.13 meters 🥑	<b>NOBNO</b>
OD RIGHT	OS LEFT	
None -0.20	•	x x x x x
		Highlight a letter/symbol by selecting it Mark remaining results: 🗸 X
		STOP MEASUREMENT
nce vision, thresholding,	with crowding	box, highlighted letter

CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

Page 18 / 31

• AOS Divid × ● Measure - AOS Visual Acuity × +     • → C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● ● C ● ■ = ● https://dev-va.netifiy.app/c/assessment/hear/left/tone     • ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●
Near vision Word 3/5 Scoring: Single item Crowding box. Off EDT     Near vision CagMAR UK - 6m Measurement REFRESH     LogMAR UK - 6m 6/23.9 Left   None REFRESH     Noble
Image: Constraint of the second o
0.60 6/23.9 Left   None     REFRESH     Mr Domenico Doice     Patient distance     0.39 meters •     Near vision results     OB     OB     OB     0.60     6/23.9     Left   None     REFRESH
Mr Domenico Dolce noble
Patient distance 0.39 meters  OB  Near vision results OD  RIGHT LEFT X
OD RIGHT     OS LEFT     X
OD     OS       RIGHT     LEFT
None >0.80* -
STOP MEASUREMENT
Patient Info Distance Near

Near vision, range finding

•••	AOS Dev2		Measure - AOS Visua	al Acuity × +							
	С	○ 읍 ब्ध 🗅	https://dev-va.netlify.a	pp/c/assessment/	/near/left/none			<b>ث</b>		♥ ⊻ (	<b>B</b>  0 ≡
	AOS	VA				CALL TIME -	00:20:36	28	EXIT	×	
			R	Near vision		Wo	rd   3/5   Sco	oring: Single iter	n   Crowding	box: Off   EDIT	
		8		LogMAR 0.60	UK - 6m <b>6/23.9</b>	Measurement Left   None				REFRESH	
	RIGHT	Ir Domenico Dolo	LEFT		peril	organ	gait	drab	sniff		
	Patient distance		0.39 meters 🥑		perm	organ	Sait	urub			
	Near vision re	sults			<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>		<b>~</b>		~		
		<b>OD</b> RIGHT	OS LEFT		×	×	×	×	×		
	None	> 0.80 <sup>+</sup>	-								_
				Highlight a let	tter/symbol by s	selecting it		Mark rema	iining results:	✓ X	
				STOP ME	EASUREMENT						
			owding box, h		-1						

CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

#### 4.4 Saving results

At the end of each measurements, results are visible in the table before a new measurement is started. Once all the desired measurements within each vision assessment have been completed, select the 'Finish and save' button. During a distance vision assessment, this will end the distance vision stage and move to the near vision assessment. During a near vision assessment, this will take the ECP to the 'Session completed' screen.

Before saving results, you will get the option to print the results at this stage. Reports of the whole assessment can be generated and printed via the AOS patient summary page after the VA session has ended.

Distance vision:

•••	AOS Dev2	× Measure - AOS Visu	al Acuity $ imes$ +						
$\leftarrow \   \rightarrow$	с о А	ब्≗ 🖸 https://dev-va.netlify.a	pp/c/assessment/distance		습 		♥ ⊻ ®	)  b ≡	≡
1		8	Distance vision	Sloan Letter   3/5   S	coring: Single item	Crowding b	iox: On   EDIT		
	7	3	Laterality RIGHT BINOC	ULAR LEFT	Correction	V			
	RIGHT Mr Domeni	LEFT	Results						
	Patient distance	3.13 meters 🥝		<b>OD</b> RIGHT		OS LEFT			
			None	-0.20 (6/3.8)		0.00 (6/6)			
	Check patient distance?	~	Results shown in format: LogMAR (L	JK - 6m)			PRINT		
			Notes Record any additional notes	here					
						_	li.		
			END WITHOUT SAVING			FINIS	H & SAVE		
			Patient info Distance	Near					

Near vision:

•••	O AOS Dev2		Measure - AOS Visua	al Acuity $ imes$ -	+									
$\leftarrow \rightarrow$	С	○ 읍 ≕ ◘	https://dev-va.netlify.a	pp/c/assessmen	nt/near				☆		$\bigtriangledown$		<b>6</b>  }	
	NOS	VA				CALL	TIME - 00 : 21 : 07	$\aleph$	X	EXIT	×	ŝ		
			R	Near visior	n		Word   3/5   Sc	oring: Sin	gle item	Crowding	) box: O	ff   ED	π	
		Q		Laterality				Correcti	on					
		$\bigcap$		RIGH	IT BINOCU	LAR	LEFT	Non	e	•				
	RIGHT		LEFT											
	м	Ir Domenico Dolce	e	Results										
	Patient distance		0.39 meters 📀				OD RIGHT			OS LEFT				
					None		> 0.80 (6/37.9)*			0.60 (6/2	3.9)			
	Check patient dis	stance?	~	Results shown *Patient acuity	n in format: LogMAR (Uk y too poor to measure r	- 6m) emotely.					P	RINT		
				Notes										
				Record an	ny additional notes h	ere								
												/	li.	
				END W	ITHOUT SAVING					FIN	ISH & S	AVE		
						,								

#### CONFIDENTIAL

Page 21 / 31

## 5 Checking exam settings and recalibration

If at any stage during a measurement you wish to change the settings of the exam or recalibrate the patient's screen or distance auto tracker, be aware that it will be required to restart the assessment and any existing results will not be saved.

•••	AOS Dev2	X Measure - AOS Visu					
$\leftarrow \rightarrow$	C O A	≅ 🖸 https://dev-va.netlify.a	pp/c/assessment/distance				- 10 =
	۶	ζ _	Settings for Distance Optotype Sioan Letter Termination criteria 3 out of 5	•	Scoring by SINGLE ITEM Crowding box YES	LINE BY LINE	
	RIGHT Mr Domen					AVE AND RESTART	
	Patient distance	Are you sure? The current results will be re	emoved and NOT saved.			: and your results will be lost.	
	Check patient distance?	CANCEL	_	_	ОКАУ	▼ START	
			Results				
				OD RIGH		OS LEFT	
			None	-0.20 (6/	(3.8)	0.00 (6/6)	
			Results shown in format: LogMAR (UK -	6m)		PRINT	

## 5.1 Changing settings during an assessment

To edit the settings of an exam, select the 'Edit' button. This will show a warning message that any unsaved results will not be saved. Edit the settings accordingly, select save and begin the measurement.

# 5.2 Recalibrating the system during an exam (screen size / distance)

At the beginning of each distance/near vision assessment, the ECP will have the option to select the 'Recalibration' button. By selecting to recalibrate, the patient must conduct recalibration of both screen size (credit card/manual H measurements) and the calibration of the distance tracker.

#### 6 Ending a visual acuity exam

On completion of the vision assessments, the ECP will reach the 'Session completed' screen. Here the ECP can repeat any measurements and there is also the option to conduct a recalibration before repeating measurements.

● ● ● ← →	O AOS Dev2	× ∩ A ≓⊓h	Controls - AOS Visu							☆		୭ 🛓	ß	=
			tips.//dev-valuetiny.c	pplolasessi	nengmanage				274					
	NOS	VA					CALL T	IME - 00 : 21 : 31	$\boxtimes$	X	EXIT X	١H ا		
		8	<b>A</b>	The s	<b>al acuity se</b> ession has e he call.			ied with the resul	s and the	patient has	no queries yo	u may		
	RIGHT	Ar Domenico Dolce	LEFT		eat assessi		e compromis	sed, repeat the se	ssions aga	in.				
	Patient distance	<b>,</b>	0.39 meters	D	DISTANCE	NE	EAR							
				The fo	libration blowing butt ting an asse	essment.	you to re-cc	librate the distan	ce monitor	ing for the p	atient before			
				Disconr	nect patier	nt					ENC	CALL		

## 6.1 Options to repeat assessments

If the ECP wishes to recalibrate before repeating a measurement, select the 'Recalibrate' button, follow the steps above for recalibration and then when returned to this page, repeat any desired measurements.

Note: Any repeated measurements will override the results of the previous measurements if conducted within the same session (i.e. the same measurement for laterality/correction cannot have two results in a session).

## 6.2 Ending the call with the patient

Whilst on the session completed screen, the ECP can say goodbye and end the call with the patient. When the 'End call' button is selected, the video call then disconnects.

## 6.3 Returning to AOS

When the VA session is over, close the VA tab and return to the patient summary page within the AOS site.

	AOS VA –	User Guide	•		
$ \begin{array}{c c} \bullet \bullet$	vit - AOS Visual Acuity × + dev-va.netlify.app/c/exit		☆	S 7 8	þ ≡
AOS VA		CALL TIME - 00 : 00 : 00	× ×	EXIT X	
	Thank you         Your remote session with your patien         this browser window and return to AC         RESTART				

#### CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

Page 24 / 31

#### 7 Viewing results

Results can be seen in the VA system after each measurement has taken place. As outlined above, these results are only saved to AOS once the 'Finish and save' button is selected. It is recommended to view the final results using the report feature outlined below.

## 7.1 View results in AOS

Add / View Image: Duestionnalie: Convertex Conve	O AOS D	Dev2 ×										
Add / View Images       Questionnaire       Video Call       Request Patient Image       Visual Acuity Exam         Examination History       View Exam       Exam Date       Clinician       Treatment       Comments         No records to display       View Exam       Exam Date       Exam Type       Clinician       Comments         Visual Acuity       View Exam       Exam Date       Exam Type       Clinician       Comments         Visual Acuity       View Exam       Exam Date       Exam Type       Clinician       Comments         Visual Acuity       06-122021       Neor       Clinician       Comments         Image:       06-122021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Image:         Image:       7-112021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Image:         Image:       5-112021       Near       Claudio Gobetti       Image:	$\leftarrow \rightarrow \mathbf{C}$	○ 合 == http	os://aosdev2. <b>rea</b>	ssureclinical.co.	uk/external/rea	aliser.aspx?i=a33cfd6	65-f81a-4b28-91d7-1	91453d98a1	i4 <b>☆</b>	0	<b>6</b> b	
View Exam       Exam Date       Clinician       Treatment       Comments         No records to display       View Exam       Exam Date       Exam Type       Clinician       Comments         Visual Aculty History       View Exam       Exam Date       Exam Type       Clinician       Comments         Image: Clinician       06-122021       Near       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       07-112021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       07-112021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       07-112021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       01-2-2021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       01-2-2021       Distance       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       01-2-2021       Near       Claudio Gobetti       Comments         Image: Clinician       01-2-2021       Near       Claudio Gobetti       Comments		$\land \land \circ$	S ADVA OPHT SYSTE	NCED HALMIC EMS		Select Patient	About	Help	Admin	Log Out		
View Exam       Exam Date       Clinician       Treatment       Comments         No records to display       No records to display       Second		Ad	ld / View Imag	ges Questi	onnaire	Video Call	Request Patient	Image	Visual Acu	ity Exam		
Visual Acuity       Wew Exam       Exam Date       Exam Type       Clinician       Comments         Image: State S		Examination History			Clinician	Treatm	nent	Comme	ents			
History     View Exam     Exam Date     Exam Type     Clinician     Comments       Image: Clinician     06-12021     Near     Claudio Gobetti     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Clinician     06-12021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Clinician     training     training     training     Clinician     Comments       Image: Clinician     training     training     training     Clinician     Clinician       Image: Clinician     training     training     training     Clinician     Clinician       Image: Clinician     training     training     training     training     training			No records to dis	splay								
History     View Exam     Exam Date     Exam Type     Clinician     Comments       IP     06-122021     Near     Claudio Gobetti     Image: Claudio Gobetti       IP     06-122021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti     Image: Claudio Gobetti       IP     06-122021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti     Image: Claudio Gobetti       IP     17-112021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti     Image: Claudio Gobetti       IP     16-112021     Near     Claudio Gobetti     Image: Claudio Gobetti												
History     View Exam     Exam Date     Exam Type     Clinician     Comments       Image: Clinician     06-122021     Near     Claudio Gobetti     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Clinician     06-122021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Clinician     711-2021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Clinician     511-2021     Near     Claudio Gobetti     Claudio Gobetti												
Image: Control of the sector of the secto		Visual Acuity History	View Exam	Exam Date	Exam Type	Clin	ician	Comme	ents			
Image: Triff-2021     Distance     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Triff-2021     Near     Claudio Gobetti       Image: Triff-2021     Near     Claudio Gobetti			Ð	06-122021	Near	Cla	udio Gobetti					
S-112021 Near Claudio Gobetti			ø	06-122021	Distance	Cla	udio Gobetti					
			Ð	17-112021	Distance	Cla	udio Gobetti					
			E)	15-112021	Near	Cla	udio Gobetti					
			<b></b>	15 11 0001	0	01	dia Ashatal					
			andfaandfandfa	efdeedf								

On the patient record page, the second box of results will display the 'Visual acuity history'. To view results for a specific assessment, select the icon under the 'View exam' column. This will open a new page with the results from that assessment.

Note: Distance/near vision assessments are shown separately even if they were completed in the same session.

## 7.2 Creating a report of the results

To create a PDF, scroll to the bottom of the page and select the 'generate report' button. This creates a PDF icon, select this icon to open the PDF report in a new browser tab.

AOS Dev2													
→ C	◯ 🛆 🕶 https	://aosdev2.r	eassureclinic	al.co.uk/ext	ernal/realiser	aspx?i=4cda808	35-6ab1-40	02-9b81-af484fac5	i2b3 ☆	ତ	) 🕹	<b>6</b> B	1
Current 06-12-2021 17:	<b>22</b> 06-12-2021 17:	17 17-11	-2021 08:45	15-11-202	1 15:37 1	5-11-2021 15:34	15-11-2021	15:08 04-11-202	1 18:28 (	4-11-2021 18:23	04-11	-2021 18:17	<
	$\land \bigcirc$		ANCED		urrent Patie 46-659976-1		Dolce D.	.O.B. : 01-Feb-1965	ID :				
			STEMS		Snellen equivalent								
	11	LogMAR	UK - 6m	LogMAR 0.60	UK - 6m								
	Unaided Glasses	0.80 (+)	6/37.9 (+)	0.60	6/23.9								
	Contact Lenses												
	Updated Glasses												
	Updated Contact												
	Lenses				I								
			Bino	cular									
			0	U									
		Log	MAR	Snellen UK	equivalent - 6m								
	Unaided												
	Glasses												
	Contact Lenses												
	Updated Glasses												
	Updated Contact Lenses												

AOS Dev2	× Rep	ort - F422E77AA5	BA82326B989×					
$\leftarrow \rightarrow \mathbf{G}$	O A https://aosde	v2.reassureclir	nical.co.uk/exte	ernal/Xenplate.	ashx?e=RbGA%	62BJg2E3cyn1EzAHTUKG1eZZ%2FQqiS	☆ ♡	<b>⊻ (8</b>  b ≡
$\square$ $\land$ $\downarrow$ 1 of 1				— + Aut	tomatic Zoom			🛱 🖶 🗅 🖡 🚿
	Patient Visua	I Acuity	Examina	tion Res	sults		С	
	First Name: Domenico		Surname: Dolce			ate of Birth: -Feb-1965		
	Patient ID: 0446-659976-1204	NHS Number:						
	Examination Date: 06-Dec-2021	Clinician: Claudio Gobetti						
	Near							
	[	Right O	t Eye D	Left C	Eye S	Notes		
		LogMAR	Snellen equivalent UK - 6m	LogMAR	Snellen equivalent UK - 6m			
	Unaided	0.80 (+)	6/37.9 (+)	0.60	6/23.9			
	Glasses							
	Contact Lenses							

# CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

Page 26 / 31

# 8 The patient journey

The majority of the patient session is driven by the ECP. Once the two are connected, the patient does not click through the system themselves. The only stage where the patient is responsible for using the system without the guidance of the ECP is during the patient setup. The patient goes through the following screens in between the invitation being sent, and the video call starting.

You have been invited to an <b>online Visual Acuity assessment</b> by your eye care provider. Please follow the instructions below to begin.					
Select the button below to be connected to your eye care provider. You will need to record your pin and enter it when prompted.					
YOUR PIN	Visual Assessment				
8082	Please enter your PIN to start				
Please have a <b>bank card</b> to hand as this is required for the initial set-up. The					
card is needed for measuring purposes only (so we can confirm the size of your screen) and will not be used to take payment of any type. You will need	4 5 6 7 D				
3m/10ft of space to conduct this test.					
2011/272					
CONNECT	e 2023 Advanced Ophthalmic Systems Ltd – AOS VA v120-beta2				
~					
E FP	*				
το 2 μπερ μεστο					
	Screen Brightness				
Welcome	Please increase the brightness of your screen.				
Before we can start your exam, we need to ensure your device is set up	Make sure to turn off the screensaver.				
correctly. There are just a few simple steps, and it won't take long.	NEXT				
NEXT	Prevolus				
e 2023 Advanced Ophthalmic Systems Ltd — AOS VA v120-beta 2	e 2003 Advanced Ophthalmic Bysterns Ltd – AOB VA v128-beta 2				
•••••)					
Volume	Fullscreen				
Please raise the volume on your device. You should be able to hear examination instructions from a distance.	Press the full screen' icon at the top right of the page to ensure you get the most out of your eye exam.				
NEXT	NEXT				
Previous	Previous				
	e 2023 Advanced Ophthatmic Systems Ltd - AOS VA v120 bata2				

## CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

Page 27 / 31



CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

Page 28 / 31



#### 9 Getting help and support

#### 9.1 The AOS website

<u>https://www.aos-hub.com</u>. For all supporting documentation for AOS products, go to the contact page and use the feedback widget or mail us direct <u>support@aos-hub.com</u>

#### 9.2 Requesting product support

Should the user have a question regarding application support or specific product use, please contact our Support Centre via the online form on the AOS Contact web pages and or live chat on our website.

#### 9.3 Finding support documentation online for other AOS products

At <u>www.aos-hub.com</u> all product documentation is logically stored and available for download in pdf format.

#### 9.4 Update notifications

Notifications of product updates and new features will be advertised on the website. All documentation will be updated accordingly. If the user has a subscription product updates and features will download automatically each time the application is started.

#### 10 FAQ's

#### **10.1** How does patient distance tracking work (automatic)

When distance tracking is set up in automatic mode, the patient distance can be viewed on the left side of the screen before each measurement starts. The distance will show in red until the patient is within +/- 10% of the target distance (3m for distance vision, 40cm for near vision). Once in the 10% range, the value shows with a tick next to it. When measurements are progress, the distance tracker locks in place at the last known value, it is then important that the patient remains still in that position for the remainder of the measurement.

#### CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

## 10.2 Tips to get best results whilst using the automatic distance tracking

The auto tracking works best when the patient's face remains visible in the screen at all times. Ask the patient to move backwards/forwards whilst keeping their face directed at the device. If the system states a 'Tracking lost' error, ask the patient to move back in so their face is visible until the tracker reconnects. The following can help improve the tracker:

- Ensure patient's face is uncovered (no face coverings, long hair in front of eyes)
- Ask the patient to move somewhere with a plain background

# 10.3 When to re-check distance tracking?

If during the measurement the patient moves from the 3m/40cm spot, it is important that that measurement is stopped and the distance tracker is re-checked before continuing. When the ECP selects 'recheck tracking' the distance tracker automatically restarts. Ensure the patient is within the correct distance range for that assessment and start a new measurement to continue.

# 10.4 How do I end a call mid-exam?

The VA session can be ended at any stage. Every screen that includes an 'End measurement' button will end that current measurement and take the ECP to the session ended screen to say goodbye to the patient. If you need to exit the system straight away, the 'Exit' button on the top banner can be clicked at any time. This will prompt a warning message to say that results may be lost.

## 10.5 What happens if the patient ends the call?

The only option the patient has to end the call is to close their browser window completely. If this happens, the ECP will get a notification that the patient has disconnected from the call.

# 10.6 What happens if the patient doesn't receive the email invitation?

If the patient does not join the call it may be because they did not receive the invitation. Contact the patient and ask them to check their spam folders and confirm their email address. If the email address is different to the one used, cancel the session and start the process again from the AOS patient summary page. If the invitation has still not arrived, you can copy and paste the link and PIN provided on the screen above into an email and send it to the patient manually.

## **10.7** Printing the user result files

Result files are saved in PDF format and can be opened and printed from any PDF viewer. The PDF reports are available by opening a patient file to the summary tab and clicking on the 'View exams' report icon. The PDF for the file/session is in the bottom left hand corner of the page.

## 10.8 I can't open my results file

This is likely that there is no PDF viewer application installed on the computer. A viewer is available for download from <u>www.adobe.com</u>.

# CONFIDENTIAL

Document code: AOS VA IFU / Revision: 1.1.1 / Issue Date: 03/10/2023

## 10.9 Software update notifications

The application automatically checks for available updates if an internet connection is available when opened.

# 11 Contact AOS

Information on all AOS applications is available online. Please contact us via the online contact forms. For any further information or enquiries regarding AOS and our products, please contact info@aos-hub.com